ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 26, 2008
3:08 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 149
"An Act relating to redistribution of used eyegl asses.”

- MOVED CSSB 149(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 258
"An Act relating to pawnbrokers; and providing for an effective
date."
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 149

SHORT TITLE: REDI STRI BUTI ON OF USED EYEGLASSES; OPT BD.
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

03/ 30/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 07 (S) L&C, HES

02/ 19/ 08 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 19/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 08 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 26/ 08 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 26/ 08 (S) Moved CSSB 149(L&C) Qut of Committee
02/ 26/ 08 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 27/ 08 (S) L&C RPT CS 5DP NEWTI TLE

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2008



02/ 27/ 08 (S) DP: ELLI S, BUNDE, DAVI S, STEVENS,

HOFFMAN
03/ 10/ 08 (S) HES AT 5:00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 10/ 08 (S) Moved CSSB 149(L&C) Qut of Committee
03/ 10/ 08 (S) M NUTE( HES)
03/ 12/ 08 (S) HES RPT CS(L&C) 4DP
03/ 12/ 08 (S) DP: DAVIS, ELTON, THOVAS, DYSON
03/ 14/ 08 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)
03/ 14/ 08 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 149( L&C)
03/ 17/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 17/ 08 (H) L&C
03/ 26/ 08 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 258
SHORT TITLE: PAWNBROKERS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ROSES

05/ 13/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 13/ 07 (H) L&C, JUD

03/ 17/ 08 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
03/ 17/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 17/ 08 (H) L&C, JUD

03/ 26/ 08 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

DAVE STANCLI FF, Staff

to Senator Cene Therriault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 149 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Senator Cene Therriault.

HOMRD RI XI E

Aurora Borealis Lions Eyeglass Recycling Center
North Pol e, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 149.

JOSH APPLEBEE, St aff

to Representative Bob Roses

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 258 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative Bob Roses.

ALEX VAUGHAN, Vi ce-President
Governnental Rel ati ons

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2008



Cash Anerica |International
Fort Wrth, Texas
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 258.

KENNETH GUDGEN, WMarket Manager

Cash Anerica Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 258.

MARK DAVI S, Davis, Director

Di vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
Juneau O fice

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

( DCCED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 258.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:08:13 PM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Buch, Gardner, and O son were present at the call to
or der. Representatives LeDoux, Ranras, and Neuman arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

SB 149- REDI STRI BUTI ON OF USED EYEGLASSES; OPT BD.

3:08:52 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 149, "An Act relating to redistribution of used
eyegl asses. "

3:09:14 PM

DAVE STANCLIFF, Staff to Senator Gene Therriault, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, explained the history of SB 149. He offered that
the Lions Clubs of Alaska requested specific authority in
statute to allow them to fit clients wth refurbished
eyegl asses. Clients would submt prescriptions and the Lions
Club of Alaska would fit them with eyeglasses donated to the
cl ub. The Lions Club of Alaska estimates that approxi mtely
1,500 Al askans would benefit from SB 149. This bill does not
require that a specific organization be granted carte blanche
aut hority. Thus, SB 149 would provide that a nonprofit
organi zation nust be approved by the Departnent of Conmerce,
Community, & Economic Developnent (DCCED) to redistribute

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2008



eyegl asses, he expl ai ned. Under current statutes, the only
people who can fit a person for eyeglasses are |icensed
optonetrists or opticians. The nonprofit would work with the
DCCED to denpnstrate its ability to nmeet the state’s standards
set by regulation. [If the DCCED granted perm ssion to the Lions
Clubs of Alaska, a person wuld present their prescription
obtained from an optonetrist or licensed physician to the Lions
Club of Alaska, who would fit the person wth a pair of
eyegl asses. He offered that SB 149 has not had any opposition.

3:11: 34 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH inquired as to who would determ nate that
t he eyegl asses are the appropriate prescription for the person.

MR.  STANCLI FF answered that the Lions Cubs have routinely
performed these duties in other states and are equipped and
trained to do so. The state would ascertain the program the
qualifications, and the nethods and neans to inplenent the
program

3:13:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH inquired as to whether a prescription that
is close but is not an exact prescription match will harm the
client. He asked if other groups could provide the sane
servi ce.

MR. STANCLI FF responded that he is not aware of any other group
so qualified as the Lions Cub since the Lions Cubs have
acquired vast experience through its program to donate
eyegl asses to the needy in other countries. However, SB 149
woul d al | ow ot her nonprofits to qualify.

3:14:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER rel ated that when she needs eyegl asses
she purchases them at Costco, Inc. and the eyeglasses are not
fitted to her and are not prescribed by any state standards.

MR.  STANCLI FF answered that the current state standards are
those required of a |icensed optonetrist. He said he was not
sure what the state would require of the Lions Cub, but
probably its staff and volunteers would need to know techni cal
know edge. He pointed out that the Lions Cubs have an
international record in operating simlar prograns. He referred
to page 2, line 24, of SB 149, and noted that |anguage that was

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2008



added in the other body reads conforms, to the extent
possible ..." He expl ained that the Lions Clubs raise funds to
pay for eye exam nations so that everyone who needs eyegl asses
can obtain a decent pair of eyegl asses.

3:17:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER characterized the Lions Cubs’ programto
recycle eyeglasses as a wonderful program that she fully
supports. She inquired as to the necessity for a person to have
a prescription in order to access the recycl ed eyegl asses.

MR. STANCLI FF answered that he is not sure why a prescription is
required. He surmsed that policy makers set what they nust
have considered to be a reasonable standard, such that
prescriptions nust be witten under a licensed optonetrist or
opt hal nol ogi st .

3:19: 01 PM

HOMRD RI XIE, Aurora Borealis Lions Eyeglass Recycling Center,
expl ained that he speaks on behalf of approximately 75 Lions
Clubs in Alaska. The Lions Cubs of Alaska all support SB 149.
He provided sonme background information on the Lions C ubs

longstanding efforts to assist the needy in obtaining
eyegl asses. He related that in 1925, Helen Keller asked the
Lions Cubs to help fix preventable blindness. He noted that
the Lions Cubs take an active part in the crusade against
dar kness. He asked Senator Therriault to sponsor this bill
because of two projects the Lions Cubs strongly support -
eyegl asses recycling and eye care for the needy. Appr oxi mat el y
1,500 people are referred annually to the Lions Clubs for eye
exans, eyeglasses, or for mjor eye care such as surgery, he
not ed. He explained the typical process is that soneone refers
a needy client to a Lions Club. The Lions Cub would refer the
person to a local state public assistance such as the Denali Kid
Care to establish the validity of the need. Once the client is
found to be truly in need, the Lions Club would financially
sponsor the person. In Interior Al aska, the Lions Cub has a
|l ong standing agreenment with |ocal eye doctors to provide eye
exans at a flat rate of $60 and eyeglasses at a flat rate of
$110. The total cost is $170 for each person assisted, he
st at ed. The cost of eye care prograns for the needy is
daunting, he opined, and many tines needy people are placed on a
waiting list until financial resources beconme avail abl e.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2008



MR RIXIE explained that the Aurora Borealis Lions Eyeglass
Recycling project collects approxinmately 30,000 to 40,000 pairs
of eyegl asses, which are sent to their recycling center in North
Pol e. At that location, volunteers sort, clean, inspect,
repair, package, and ship approximately 30,000 pairs of
eyegl asses throughout the world to support vision care health
mssions in the third world countries. Al though third world
countries are served, he noted that many people in Al aska go
W t hout services. The Lions Cubs researched whet her eyegl asses
could be redistributed in Al aska. Al t hough the Al aska statutes
don't preclude it, the statutes do not specifically enable or
address redistribution of eyeglasses in Al aska, he offered.
Thus, to ensure that the Lions Cubs can legally redistribute
recycled eyegl asses, the Lions Cubs approached Senator
Therriault and requested statutory clarification. The Lions
Cl ubs envision each optonetrist or opthal nologist would donate
one or two Saturdays annually to perform free eye exam nations.
The Lions Cubs would offer free exam nations once or twce
nont hly. Additionally, the Lions Cubs hope that anong their
t housands of donated ready-to-wear eyeglasses, the client would
find a pair of eyeglasses that would nmatch their prescription.
He stated that the Lions Clubs don't want to "corner the market"
on filling this need, but supports enabling statutes so that
peopl e who need eyeglasses will be able to receive them One
concern is that the Lions Cubs wll take income making
opportunities away from eye care professionals. But he argued
that if the Lions Clubs did not serve the needs of these needy
peopl e, they would never get an eye exam or a pair of gl asses.
These folks are not active consuners in the eye care industry,
he opined. And they won't becone consuners until they have jobs
that produce sufficient inconme that places quality of life and
vision sufficiently in the forefront for the need to be acted
upon. Most, if not all of the people served by the Lions C ubs
are honel ess, battered, displaced, or severely poor. He urged
the commttee to support SB 149.

MR. RIXIE defined the three types of eye care professionals. He
stated that an opthal nologist primarily studies eye disease and
perfornms surgeries; an optonetrist provides prescriptions, and
an optician processes the prescription, orders the eyeglasses
from the manufacturer, and fits the eyeglasses for the client.
The Lions Cubs ideally would partner with opticians or would
work towards the goal of performng the services the optician
performs. Under SB 149, an optician would provide his services
at a clinic and provide the Lions Cub with a prescription. The
Lions Club would sort through the recycled eyeglasses to provide
a perfect or “near perfect fit” and would fit the client wth

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2008



eyegl asses. Currently, the Lions Clubs provide clients in third
world countries with a “near perfect fit.” Under the bill, the
Lions Clubs would work with the state to develop the standard
for “near perfect fit” such as reaching within .25 of the
prescription, for a prescription of 1.50. Not all comunities
are currently served by optonetrists or opticians, especially in
rural Al aska, he not ed. Therefore, the Lions Cub nay need to
tel econference with the appropriate professional in order to
serve the client.

3:26: 57 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on SB 149.

3:27:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER i nquired as to whether it is essential to
require a prescription for recycled eyeglasses. She related
that second hand stores have stacks of donated eyegl asses and a
person deci des which pair of eyegl asses to select.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that the Hi ppocratic Cath [that
sets the ethical standard for physicians] requires nedical
personnel to “do no harni. He related his understanding of the
program is for people to obtain a correct prescription for
eyegl asses and he cautioned nmenbers not to degrade the degree of
servi ce. He related his own experience in wearing the wong
prescription which resulted in a headache. He opined that
selecting ones own eyeglasses would not be appropriate care
since the eyegl asses need to fit the prescription.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that the conmttee not let the
principle of perfection becone the eneny. She acknow edged t hat
it is great to have perfect fit. However, for many people
without the neans to afford eye care a near perfect may be
adequate, she opined. She also noted that sonme places in rura
Al aska may need to use accombdati ons such as tel enedicine.

3:29: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether current |aw
restricts who can sell eyegl asses.

MR.  STANCLI FF answered that currently a person can purchase

eyegl asses off the rack that the person feels corrects his/her
Vi si on. He pointed out the Lions Cub and eye care

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2008



professionals take that a step further [by determning the
specific prescription of each |ens.]

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether the Lions Cubs in
Al aska are prevented from helping people to obtain recycled
eyegl asses unl ess SB 149 passes the |egislature.

MR. RIXIE explained that currently in Alaska the Lions C ubs
work with |ocal eye doctors to provide a subsidy for clients to
purchase the eyegl asses. Thus far, the Lions Cubs have not
been able to redistribute eyeglasses since the eye care
prof essionals are opposed to redistribution by allow ng people
to select their own pair of eyeglasses. He offered that the
Lions Clubs want to provide a quality service to people rather
than to have them randomy select eyegl asses. He pointed out
that there are 50,000 possible prescriptions. He noted that
their program would work to closely fit, if not perfectly fit
the client. If the prescription did not fit exactly, the Lions
Club would prefer to offer the client eyeglasses that are under
their prescription rather than over their prescription, he
st at ed.

3:32: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX related her understanding that the Lions
Club could not allow people to sort through eyegl asses to sel ect
their own pair. She reiterated that stores such as Wal-Mart or
second hand stores are selling eyeglasses that people randomy
select, so she said she did not understand why the Lions C ubs
could not do the same thing.

MR RIXIE said he could not fully explain the reason \Wal-Mart

can sell eyeglasses from a rack. He surmsed that the
eyegl asses that the Lions Cubs would recycle are actually
eyegl asses prescribed specifically for someone el se. He echoed

his earlier testinony that the interpretation the Lions C ub
received was that the statutes do not enable or disallow the
Lionns Club from performng the distribution of recycled

eyegl asses. Since the Lions Cub wants to be on firm I egal
ground, it has asked the legislature for «clarification in
statute. He also surmised that without the statute change that
the Lions Cub mght have sone liability if soneone wore

eyegl asses di spensed by them and conpl ai ned.

3:34: 27 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether there is a |egal
need for SB 149.

MR. STANCLI FF explained that as a nonprofit, the Lions Cub
takes its responsibilities seriously. Thus, the Lions Cub of
Al aska approached policynmakers since it wants to work with the
state agency to set standards to provide the best possible care
for people in need of eyeglasses. He characterized the Lions
Club efforts as benevol ent. He said he applauds the approach
that the Lions Cub has taken with respect to SB 149.

3:36:15 PM

MR. STANCLIFF, in response to Representative Gatto, said he
couldn’t answer if the Lions Cub would be free from any
liability. However, he said he believes that taking the route
of working with a state agency to develop standards offers the
Lions Club the best protection against liability.

MR. RI XIE acknow edged that the Lions Cub does not expect that

its clubs will be totally free fromliability. He pointed out
that the International Lions Club is protected by a $1 nmillion
l[iability insurance policy. He characterized SB 149 as an
equi tabl e conprom se. He related that the Lions Cub has

attenpted to abide by the principle of “doing no harnf in the
process of trying to make available 40,000 pairs of eyeglasses
to Al askans

3:38: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whet her eyegl asses have an
identifier or if someone nust calculate the prescription.

MR. RIXIE answered that the prescription is usually printed on
the sides of the franme on eyeglasses purchased at Wl-Mart or
simlar stores. However, the ones generated by an optician or
optonmetrist do not inprint the prescription on the eyegl asses.
He surmised that may be because a person’s vision is often not
the sane in each eye. Thus, nost of the eyeglasses the Lions
Cl ubs receive from donors are sent through a lens neter. Thus,
the Lions Cub volunteer would read the prescription for each
lens, print a label for each lens, and would adhere the label to
the outside of the bag. He characterized the process as
efficient and precise.

3:39:37 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSSB 149(L&C) out of
commttee with individual recomendati ons and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 149(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commrerce Standi ng Comrittee.
3:40: 06 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from3:40 p.m to 3:42 p. m

HB 258- PAWNBROKERS

3:42: 51 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 258, "An Act relating to pawnbrokers; and
providing for an effective date."

3:43: 08 PM

JOSH APPLEBEE, Staff to Representative Bob Roses, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of the prine sponsor, Representative Bob

Roses, explained that HB 258 wIll nodernize, update, and
regul ate the pawnbroker industry. This bill would provide new
provisions to create licensure, fee structure, and regulatory
framework for the industry. The bill would provide a grace

period for mlitary nenbers, standardize the fee structure,
require a biennial report to the Ilegislature, and would
institute a 30 day grace period for custoners to retrieve their
per sonal bel ongi ngs. He highlighted that the sponsor worked
over the legislative interimwth the D vision of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing (DCBPL) and the industry on
issues with HB 258. He noted that AARP supports HB 258.

3:46: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to page 2, proposed AS 08.76.020
of HB 258. She expressed concern that the pawnshop’s *“book”
will be open to the inspection of a peace officer at reasonable
times since the book contains confidential information such as
sonmeone’s nanme and address. She inquired as to the rationale
for disclosing to the governnment, a person’s nane, address,
description of the pledged property, and the anount |oaned to
t he person.

MR APPLEBEE answered that there are several instances that

m ght arise when a |law enforcenment officer may need to inspect
the books such as wth suspicion of theft or during an

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 26, 2008



i nvestigation. He pointed out that currently every financial
institution has this requirenment in place for their |oans.

3:48:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to page 2, lines [1-12] of HB
258 that lists the information that nust be conpiled in the
pawnbr oker’s book such as the date, nanme, and address of the
cust oner. She inquired as to whether the custoner nust prove
hi s/ her age.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that HB 258 requires that a person nust be
18 years or older so it would be incunbent on the pawnbroker to
check identification of the person pledging the property.

3:49:40 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to page 2, lines 14-16, that
reads, “Blank lines my not be left between entries.” She

expressed concern that soneone pledging property would have
access to personal information of prior custoners since blank
lines may not be left between entries. She inquired as to
whet her the pawnbroker would need to maintain a log and also
need to duplicate the information in an electronic format in
order to submt it.

MR. APPLEBEE expl ai ned that the provisions in proposed Section 4
are intended to establish a process in which the | aw enforcenent
personnel or auditor can verify that the pawn transaction was
appropriately conducted. He surmsed that a larger city, such
as the Municipality of Anchorage, would likely connect pawnshops
to the Anchorage Police Departnment or other public safety
of fices. Since some unincorporated boroughs or towns do not
have the ability to submt data electronically, HB 258 provides
for a manual system to accommpdate them He related that if
property is stolen and reported to the police, that the police
woul d have the ability to check by conmputer all pawnshop entries
that may match the stolen item

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER offered her belief that this provision
may be an inpedinent for owners who may have to perform data
entry to list itens that are recorded in the book. She pointed
out that scanning the information wuld render the data
unsear chabl e.

3:53:11 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2008



CHAI R OLSON announced that it is not his intention to nove HB
258 until the Department of Law is able to answer questions.

3:53:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX related her under st andi ng that t he
pawnshop would be connected electronically to the police
departnment and asked for clarification of that process.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that it is possible to connect the
pawnshops to the police departnents since the software currently
exi sts. In further response to Representative LeDoux, M.
Appl ebee related that electronic progranms are designed to track
only the property, such as the serial nunber and description of
the item and not information on the person who pawned the item
He noted that the specific information on the seller would be
hel d only at the pawnshop.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether problens currently
exist that HB 258 would renedy, such as preventing sale of
stol en merchandi se to pawnshops.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that HB 258 would afford sone |evel of
certainty that pawnshops won't be used for that purpose.

3:56:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH referred to page 2, line 27, and inquired as
to the nmethod used to establish that a person has good character
in order for the person to secure a |icense. He noted that he
didn’t need an immedi ate answer to the question, but wanted to
know generally the process the agency would use to determne if
a person had good character.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked to add to the |ist of questions the
reason to require that a person has prior business experience.

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH referred to page 3, line 4, to the
requirenent for a nonrefundable initial investigation fee of
$200, and inquired specifically what type of investigation the
fee would entail. He referred to page 4, line 13, and further
asked what Ilimtations in AS 08.76.210 are pertinent to
pawnshops.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that payday |enders were separated out
from other lenders in legislation that passed the |egislature

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2008



two years ago. He highlighted that the pawnbroker businesses
are also required to be separated from ot her types of | ending.

4:01: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to page 4, line 13, and rel ated
her understanding that this section would renpove the $500 pawn
cash limt currently in statute.

MR. APPLEBEE agreed that the cash limt would be renoved.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to proposed AS 08.76.170, under
custoner and transaction limtations, which states that a
pawnbr oker may not knowi ngly enter into a pawnbroker transaction
with a person who is under the influence of alcohol or a
controlled substance. She pointed out that this sane
restriction is not required for a sale. She inquired as to
whet her these elenents are intentionally treated differently.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that he doesn’t know if it is realistic to
prevent people from exercising their right to purchase goods
even if the people are under the influence of alcohol. He noted
that currently custoners are not forbidden from entering any
other store to nmke purchases while wunder the influence of
al cohol or drugs. Thus, pawnshops are treated in the sane
manner as ot her stores.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER rel ated her wunderstanding that under HB
258 that a person could not pawn a ring while under the
i nfluence of drugs or alcohol, but that the person could
pur chase one.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that HB 258 provides sone assurance that a
custoner will enter into financial transactions with a clear
head.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to page 4, and related her
understanding that proposed AS 08.76.170 would only apply to
incom ng property but not to sales of nerchandise. She inquired
as to whether this section could be clarified so that it is
clear that the person who purchases itens i s excluded.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that wth respect to the customer and
transaction limtations, the intent of proposed AS 08.76.170 is
to ensure that the pawnbroker doesn't have a customer under the
i nfluence of alcohol or drugs proceed into transactions under

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 26, 2008



soneone el se's nane. He further stated that this section could
be anended for clarification.

4:06:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to the purpose of the | anguage
of proposed AS 08.76.180 that specifies listing the name of the
person purchasing property. She pointed out that she could
purchase itens at stores such as Nordstroms and not have her
name and address recorded.

MR. APPLEBEE answered that under HB 248 if sonething goes wong
the bill provides assurance that the transaction can be traced.
Further, if someone has a habit of pawning itens, it nmay be an
i ndi cator that the person is selling stol en nerchandi se.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that a person m ght habitually
frequent pawnshops sinply to find nice ivory and jewelry in the
shops. She mmintained her concern that a jeweler is not held to
t he sane standard.

MR. APPLEBEE said he believes that the intent is to establish a
certain level of trustworthiness since pawnshops have a bad
reputation, perhaps due to the way pawnshops are depicted in
films. This bill attenpts to make the process open and
transparent and hel p renove any stigma for pawnshops.

4:08: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN rel ated that from his own experiences that
he has found sone pawnshops to be “top notch” and noted he did
not share the opinion depicted in sone filmns. He expressed his
concern with respect to keeping a record of all sales. He
referred to page 3, [paragraph (e)] and expressed concern that a
m d-1 evel bureaucrat in the Departnent of Commerce, Community, &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) would be in the position to judge
the character of the licensee. He asked that clarification of
the guidelines for judging a person’s character be added to the
list of questions.

MR. APPLEBEE, in response to Representative Neuman said he
believes that the application can be submtted el ectronically.

4:11: 24 PM

ALEX  VAUGHAN, Vi ce- Pr esi dent, Gover nnent al Rel ati ons, Cash
Arerica International, explained that his business is a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2008



publically traded conpany. He explained that Cash Anerica
I nternational provides financial services to individuals across
the United States in 942 | ocations. H s conpany is the |argest
provi der of pawn loans in the country, he opined. O their 499
pawnshops, 5 stores are |ocated in Anchorage, he noted. He
offered that Cash Anerica International supports HB 258 since it
creates a 21° century regulatory structure for the industry. He
opined that HB 258 would protect consuners and customers. This

bill provides |icensing provisions, oversight, and regulation by
a state agency, which he said he believes is inportant for the
i ndustry. This bill contains uniform standards for |icensing

investigation fees to allow the state to ensure that pawnbrokers
are legitimate, a requirenent for a biennial report, and
strengthens the reporting activities to police departnents.
This bill also <creates consunmer protections for mlitary
service, standardizes the fee structure for the initial 30 day
| oan period, and maintains the current finance rate. This bil
allows a 30 day grace period to allow custonmers to retrieve
their property.

MR.  VAUGHAN highlighted that HB 258 creates one of the nost
nodern pawn statutes in the country. He opined that many
Anmericans depend on pawnbrokers to help them neet their
financial needs not offered by other financial institutions. He
offered that pawn custonmers represent the working famlies who
periodically experience unexpected needs for short term

fi nances. He said, “Pawn |oans help them keep the electricity
on and the rents paid.” He opined that Cash Anerica
| nt er nat i onal constantly works to enhance the imge of
pawnbr okers while offering needed services to the people in the
comuni ty. He opined that their stores are attractive and
wel coming places to conduct business. He noted that Cash

Anerica International is a nenber of the National Pawnbroker
Associ ati on whose mssion is to inprove professional devel opnent
and enhance the imge of the industry by advocating for
pawnbr oker rights, responsibilities, and inproving regulation of
t he industry.

MR. VAUGHAN descri bed the pawnbroker’s process. He stated that
a custoner pledges his/her personal property as collateral for a

| oan. Wen the custoner repays the Jloan and fees, the
mer chandi se is returned. Pawn |oans are nmade on products
ranging from jewelry to electronics. If a customer does not

redeem his/her property, there are no credit consequences, but
the property becones the property of the pawnbroker who sells
the nerchandise to retail custoners. He noted that the average
pawn loan in the United States is $75, and in Alaska is $85

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2008



Approximately 75 to 80 percent of the tinme, custoners redeem
their property, he noted. The redenption rate in Alaska is
approximately 51 percent. The Ilength of terns to redeem
property varies between states, but typically a pawnbroker
allows customers 30 days, wth sone states allowing an
additional 30 day grace period. Currently, the Al aska statutes
allow 30 days without a grace period for custoners to redeem
pawned property. The interest rates are set at 20 percent,
which is conparable with other western states. He noted that
under HB 258, all transactions would be reported to assist in
property crinme investigations. He opined that it is in the best
i nterest of custoners, coworkers, and investors to elimnate any

pot enti al transaction involving stolen nerchandise. He
acknowl edged the perception in the nedia and in Hollywod is
that pawnshops are pipelines used by crimnals. However, he
offered statistics that counter that perception. In the past 12
nmont hs endi ng i n Decenber 2007, Cash Anerica International’s 485
stores handled 9.6 mllion itens and advanced $525 million in
loans to customers on 6 mllion transactions. O those, only
4,484 transactions involved police seizures, he opined. O the
127,000 itens in Alaska resulting in $5.7 mllion in loans on

7,976 transactions, only 32 resulted in police holds or seizure.
Less than one percent of the overall transactions resulted in
police holds or seizures, he offered. He noted that pawnbrokers
have t he responsibility to saf eguard their custoner’s

information under federal |aw. This bill would allow Cash
Anerica International to work with local I|aw enforcenment by
submtting the pawn transaction information, but not the
custoner infornmation. Under the bill, The pawn transactions
woul d be held confidential and release of information would be
l[imted to investigation of stolen property. This bill provides

many inprovenments to the regulatory framework in which all
pawnbr okers can operate profitably while providing the state
regul atory oversi ght, he concl uded.

4:19: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether a pawnbroker would
provi de the nane of the custoner to the police departnent.

MR. VAUGHAN answered that the police would be able to access the
records when necessary in the course of conducting an
investigation or an audit in electronic or paper form The
record provided to the police agencies would only be the
description of the property and information such as the date the
property was pawned, the amount of the loan, but would not
i nclude any custoner information. Additionally, if information

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 26, 2008



is sent electronically, it would be encrypted as required under
f ederal standards.

4:21:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to proposed section AS 08.76. 010,
and noted that provision refers to the types of information that
nmust be nmai ntai ned. She expressed concern that the name, age,
and address of the custoner is listed, and that proposed Section
4 states that the book shall be open to the inspection of a
peace officer at reasonable tines.

MR. VAUGHAN answered that the records are mamintained at the
store. An officer or agent of the state would have access to
records at his store to ensure that the pawnbroker is neeting
the requirenents. However, information transmtted to the
pol i ce agencies woul d be solely transactional.

4:23:09 PM

KENNETH GUDGEN, Mar ket Manager, Cash Anerica Al aska, stated that
his conpany owns 5 stores in Anchorage. Cash Anerica Al aska
enpl oys 48 people in Anchorage and offers enployees a ful
benefits package that includes health benefits, life insurance,
and a retirenent plan. H's conpany also offers enployee
training on sales and customer service. He offered that his
conpany’s purpose is to serve the comunity in a safe
envi ronnent . He noted his pawnshops are well run, well

mai nt ai ned busi nesses that strive to provide a high level of
service. The stores have been renodeled and are clean and well
lit. Their core business is the pawn business, he offered. I n
2007, 29,000 residents resulted in total sales of $5.7 mllion
in the Anchorage pawnshops. He offered that Cash Anerica Al aska
offers loans for many purposes such as to provide expenses for
fishermen in the off season, or to people who work in renote
| ocations and don’t receive their pay for several weeks. O her
|l oans are nmde for energencies such as for car repairs or

surgeri es, he offered. Custoners offer their valuable
possessions as collateral to secure the |oans. He opined that
HB 258 offers customers and his businesses many advant ages. He

advised that his stores currently report all pawn transactions
to the police departnent including the nake, nodel, and seria
nunber of all itenms as well as the nane, driver’'s |icense
nunber, and birth date of the person pawning the item He
characterized his relationship wth the Anchorage Police
Departnment as a good working relationship. When Cash Anerica
Al aska receives stolen nerchandise, the store provides police

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2008



Wi th i nformation i ncl udi ng surveill ance vi deos. The
Municipality of Anchorage requires nmandatory reporting |aws.
This proposed legislation makes reporting mandatory for al
license holders in Alaska, which provides consumer protections
and protections for pawnshops. This bill also protects mlitary
custoners by guaranteeing no interest on their pawned
nmer chandi se during the tine the mlitary person is overseas. He
concluded that his goals are to take good care of the people
that his stores serve.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to page 7, lines 17-26, and
inquired as to how the pawnbroker can track the mlitary
per sonnel . She opined that wunless the mlitary personnel

notified the pawn shop prior to leaving the country, that the
pawned item coul d be inadvertently sold.

MR. GUDGEN agreed that the pawnbroker would need to be notified
prior to departure or the pawned goods woul d be sol d.

4:30: 01 PM

MARK DAVIS, Director, D vision of Corporations, Business, and
Prof essi onal Licensing, Juneau Ofice. Departrment of Comerce,
Community, & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED) explained that the
division is in support of licensing pawbrokers. He stated that
the division supports HB 258, although he noted that the bil
may need sone refinenent. He suggested one area that my need
to be reviewed is the requirenent for good character in proposed
AS 08. 76. 110.

4:30: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to page 4, subsection (b) which
describes the biennial report and inquired as to what is the
state’s interest in knowing the nunmber and anmounts paid since
that information is proprietary information.

MR. DAVIS answered that he interprets this subsection would
require reporting only the aggregate anmount, simlar to the
reporting requirement for banks, which is to inform the
|l egislature the size of the industry and provide industry
trends.

MR. DAVIS, in response to Representative Gardner, explained that
various reports require tracking itens such as the nunber of
| i censees, aggregate size, assets under control. He surm sed
that the division would probably develop a reporting requirenent

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2008



in regulation designed to determine how the industry is
per f or m ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opi ned that she is not convinced that the
state needs to know the profitability of pawnbrokers.

VR. DAVIS answered that the report woul d  not di vul ge
profitability, but would show itenms such as the nunber of
transactions, nunber of itens pawned, and nunber of redenptions.
He pointed out the industry is currently recording this
i nformation.

4:33:18 PM

MR. DAVIS, in response to Representative Neuman, noted that the
division does not currently regulate pawnshops so the bill’s
sponsor projected an estimate of 30 new |icensees. In further

response to Representative Neuman, M. Davis advised that not
everyone uses the nane “pawnshop” in their business nane so a
search of business |icenses would not provide the nunber of
pawnbr okers operating in the state.

4:34:15 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to whether the requirenent

that the applicant be of good character and have the experience
to engage is required of other professions.

VR. DAVIS answered that some professions have simlar
requirenments. He referred to AS 06.50.020, which establishes
qualifications for deferred deposit Ilending |icenses that
requires applicants to, “denonstrate financial responsibility,
financial condition, business experience, character, and general
fitness.” In further response to Representative Gardner, M.

Davis answered that the experience to engage in business as a
pawnbr oker would require applicants denonstrate the ability to
understand noney |ending, risk involved in |ending noney, and
the ability to maintain records, which could be denonstrated by
educati onal experience or prior work experience. He opined that
it is inmportant in |ending businesses that the person has the
necessary busi ness acunen.

4:36:17 PM

CHAIR OLSON, after first determning that no one else wished to
testify, announced that he woul d keep public testinony open.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2008



4:36: 39 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that HB 258 woul d be hel d over.

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
4:36 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2008



